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State of California California Natural Resources Agency

Memorandum

To:

From:

Subject:

Karen Douglas, Commissioner and Presiding Member Date: August 8, 2018

Janea A. Scott, Commissioner and Associate Member
Telephone: (916) 654-4842

California Energy Commission—Chris Davis
1516 Ninth Street Siting Office Manager
Sacramento CA 95814-5512

Data clarification questions and responses for the McLaren Backup Generation
Facility SPPE application review—Response to Comments on Air Quality and Public
Health Issues

On July 24 and July 25, 2018, the Clean Coalition submitted comments related to air
quality and public health to the docket for the McLaren Backup Generation Facility
Small Power Plant (SPPE) application and revised application [17-SPPE-01]. Also on
July 24, 2018, Helping Hands Tools submitted comments on air quality and public
health to this docket.

In order to prepare staff responses to these comments, on August 2, 2018, Project
Manager Lon Payne sent an email to the applicant's representative, Scott Galati. On
August 8, 2018, Scott Galati sent responses. Both the questions and responses are
attached for referencing purposes.

Attachments:
August 2, 2018 email to Scott Galati
August 8, 2018 email responses from Scott Galati.



Bemis, Gerry@Energy —— -

From: Payne, Leonidas@Energy

Sent: Wednesday, August 08, 2018 11:25 AM

To: Bemis, Gerry@Energy

Subject: Fw: Emergency Operation Questions for McLaren SPPE
Attachments: Emergency Operation Questions.docx

From: Payne, Leonidas@Energy

Sent: Thursday, August 2, 2018 2:17 PM
To: Scott Galati

Subject: Emergency Operation Questions for MclLaren SPPE

Scott:
Please see the attached questions from our AQ evaluation team regarding emergency operation issues that
were raised during the public comment process on Mclaren. Your prompt response is requested so we can

incorporate this information into our Aug. 13 filing to the Committee.

Lon Payne—Siting Project Manager
California Energy Commission



Bemis, Gerz@Eneray i}

From: Payne, Leonidas@Energy
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 6:07 PM
To: Bemis, Gerry@Energy; Record, Jacquelyn@Energy; Qian, Wenjun@Energy; Babula,
, Jared@Energy
Subject: Fwd: Vantage Responses to Staff Data Requests
Attachments: image001.jpg; ATT00001.htm; VDC Responses to MBGF 8.7.18 CEC Data Requests.pdf;

ATT00002.htm; Maintenance Load and Emergency Events at Campus - Final.xlsx;
ATT00003.htm '

Sent from my iPhone
Begin forwarded message:

From: Scott Galati <sgalati@dayzenllc.com>
Date: August 7, 2018 at 5:30:38 PM PDT
To: "Leonidas.Payne@energy.ca.gov" <Leonidas.Payne @energy.ca.gov>, "Layton, Matthew@Energy"

<Matthew.Layton@energy.ca.gov>

Subject: Vantage Responses to Staff Data Requests

Lon and Matt,

Attached are Vantage’s responses to CEC Staff Data Requests issued on August 2, 2018.



1. What s the history of diesel-fueled engines needing to operate at other Vantage data
centers located in the vicinity of the proposed site for McLaren?- We would hope to
have recent and historical information on:

PRo oY

f.

Number of readiness testing events and durations;

Number of emissions testing events and durations;

Number of engines starts but not loaded, events and durations;

Number of engines starts and then loaded, events and durations;

Electrical grid outages types (e.g., complete loss of connection, voltage drop,
transients) and frequency; and

Number of internal-to-the-data-center events that trigger an engine start.

2. Would the above information be affected by which utility (e.g., PG&E vs SVP vs SMUD)
serves the data center?

Would the above information be affected by whether the data center is connected at

the distribution level or at higher voltages through a dedicated switchyard?

How is the switchyard that would serve the proposed Mclaren facility connected to SVP

and are any other data centers on the transmission line?



Vantage Data Center’'s Responses to CEC Data Requests
McLaren Back Up Generating Facllity (MBGF)
17-SPPE-01

1. What is the history of diesel-fueled engines needing to operate at other
Vantage data centers located in the vicinity of the proposed site for
McLaren? We would hope to have recent and historical information on:

Response: It is important to note that Vantage’s other campus (Santa Clara)
was developed over time and the Santa Clara campus generators are connected
in paraltel. In order to facilitate construction and expansion at the Santa Clara
campus, some generators needed to run. Those hours are not included in these
responses because they were part of construction and are not relevant to
understanding the proposed operations at the MBGF.

The MBGF generators will not be constructed in parallel and instead will be
constructed in a manner that would allow a set of generators to serve a specific
floor of the respective buildings. Once that set of generators is constructed ("4 to
make 3" discussed in Response 1. d. below) it is dedicated to the floor and will
not be used for construction or expansion activities for subsequeng phases.

Therefore, the responses provided below are limited to maintenance and testing
operatlons or operation during an emergency and not for construction and
expansion of the Santa Clara Campus.

a. Number of naadiness testing events and durations;

Response: See Aftachment A, Table 1.
b. Number of emissions testing events and durations;

Response: Vantage does not perform, and the BAAQMD permit does not
require, emission testing events.

¢. Number of engines starts but not loaded, events and dqmtions,

Responge: See Attachment A, Table 1
d. Number of engines starts and then Iéaded, events and durations;

Responsge: There has been only one event at the Santa Clara Campus over
the last 8 years that required generation of electricity during an outage. The
event lasted approximately 12 hours and all of the generators were started
and the redundant generators shedded to match the actual load. See
Attachment A, Table 2.



The MBGF facility is designed differently than the units at the Santa Clara
Campus. Rather than shedding individual generators to match load and allow
redundancy which is done at the Santa Clara Campus, the MBGF Facility is
designed with a “4 to make 3" configuration. In this configuration 4
generators will share the electrical load. The maximum electrical load equals
the continuous rating of 3 generators so that if one of the 4 generators were
to fail, the load can be supplied by the 3 generators remaining in the cluster.
Therefore during a similar outage that was experienced at Santa Clara, all of
the MBGF generators will be started and then all 4 generators in each cluster:
will be adjusted to match the load necessary for that particular cluster.

e. Electrical grid outages types (e.g., complete loss of connection,
voltage drop, transients) and frequency; and

: As discussed in Response to 1. d. above, the Santa Clara
Campus has only experienced one event in 8 years. The outage affected the
entire campus and lasted for approximately 12 hours. MBGF has been -
designed with a UPS system that will address the other types of outages.

f. Number of internal-to-the-data-center events that trigger an engine
start.

Response: Other than construc'tion activities and expanSion, no internal-to-
the-data-center events have triggered an engine start at the Santa Clara
Campus. As described above because the MBGF has been designed
differently than the Santa Clara Campus, the MBGF generators will not be run
to allow construction and expansion of subsequent phases. There are no
internal-to-the-data-center events that would trigger an engine start expected
at the MDC.

Vantage provides security for its customers so that they can rely on the safety
and accessibility of their critical business electronic data. Although an outage
is very unlikely, it is not impossible. Since the loss of a business’ critical data
could be catastrophic, Vantage has invested heavily in constructing the
distribution substation for Silicon Valley Power (SVP), which is dedicated
solely fo distribute electricity to the MDC. The SVP substation is connected
directly to the transmission system and the SVP Substation is served by
redundant utility feeds. Vantage's investment in the dedicated SVP
distribution substation will provide further protection from utility cutages.

2. Would the above information be affected by which utiluy (e.g., PG&E vs
SVP vs SMUD) serves the data center? ‘

Response: Vantage does not believe the information provided above would be
affected by which utility serves the data center. Both the Santa Clara facility and

2



4.

the.MDC are served by SVP. SVP has an outstanding track record for electrical
delivery.

Would the above information be affected by whether the data center is
connected at the dlsa'ibutlon level or at higher voitages through. a
dedicated switchyard?

Response: Vantage believes that the SVP distribution substation for the MDC -
will provide additional security from outages because it is dedicated solely to the
MDC and is interconnected at the transmission level with access to redundant
utility feeds.

How is the switchyard that would serve the proposed McLaren facility
connected to SVP and are any other data centers on the transmission line?

: As discussed above in Responses to 1.f. and 3 above, the SVP

- distribution substation is not connected to any other data centers served by

redundant utility feeds.
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SC1-V1-GENSS 543 57. 0.1 Run Maintenance Test!
SCA-V1-GENSS 543 57. Run Maintenance T
SC1-V1-GENRS 543 $7.9) 02 Ram Maintenance Testing
SC1-V1-GENRS 543 58.2 03 Run Maintenance Testing
SC1-VI-GENNS 3 584 02 Run Maintenance T
SC1-V1-GENS 3 52 Bank Test Load Ty
SC1-V1-GENAS 5-43 824 Run Malntenance T
SC2-V1-GENSS 543 82.6 02 Run Malztenance Testing
SC1-V1-GENIS 43 83.9) 13 Run [ Maintenance Testing
SC1-V1-GENSS 3 841 02 Run Maintenznce T ,
C1-V1-GENSS 543 84.4] : 0.3 Run Maintenanee Testing
SC1-V1-GEN#S S-43 84.7 Run Malntenance
C1-V1-GENSS 43 %F 0.2[PSG A APM Maintenance
|SC-V1-GENIS S43 0.1{APM Maintenance T
SCI-V2-GENES s43 __10/29/2007) 1702 MPM Maintenance T
SCI-V1-GENES C 11/28/2017 170. [ un Maintenance T
SC1-V1-GENES 43 1 o2[mpm Maiatenzace T
C1-V1-GENS q 1706 un Maintenance
SC1-V1-GEN2A2 S-45 7, 158 01 run Maintenance T
SCI-V1-GENAAZ 545 7 19.1 ClAPM Maintenance T
SC1-V1-GENA2 545 _10/24/2017 192 ojserm |Matmtenance Testing ‘
SC1-V1-GENSA2 5-45 12/22/2017 19.9 02 un {Malntenance Testing
SCLV1GENAZ sas 12/29/2017 o.1{MPM Malntenance T
SC1-V1-GENIA2 21 0.1{MPM Maintenance T
SC1-Va-GENKY 546 0 Run Maintenante T
CL-V2-GENDY 545 2/6/2017 38.1¢ 0. Run Maintenance T
SC1-V2-GENT 548 —3/10/2017 013 Run Maintenance T
SC1-V2-GENRT S48 7] 354 0.12] Run Malntenance T¢
SC1-V2-GENHT 5-46 -_1J9/2017 35.03 0A3|MPM Mzintenance Testing
sc1v2 GENIY 546 7 35.09 wun Mairtenance T
C1-V2-GERD) : 3517] 0.08 fun Mainterance T
CL-V2-GENITY 548 35.24] 007 run added 2 gal of 0B Maintenance ¥
CI-V2-GENA? S48 M] 40.27] 0.08 un Metntenance T
SC1-V2-GENTY 46 12/5/2017 mssl 0.05]MU APM Maintensnce Testing
C1-V2-GENIT T 40.59 2018 n __|Maintenance Testing
SCI-V2-GENIT s46 4124 0.7 troubleshost Maintenance ¥
SC1-V2-GENT? [S-46 ; 41.39) 01§ un Maintenance Y
SC1-V2-GENSS 7 1/9/2017 0.3]Monthly Run Maintenance T




SC1-V2.GENSS 547 2/6/2007] 32,88

SC1V2-GES s47 3/10/2007) 33

SC1V2.GENNa S47 a/8/2007] 33.18

SC1-V2-GENSS S-47 i’% 33.28

SC1-V2-GEND3 S-47 6/1/2017 37.75!

SCI-V2-GENSS sa7 1/9/2017) 3245

SC1-V2-GEN23 597 /672017 7 X)

SC1-V2-GENRS 547 3/10/2017 33

SC1-V2-GENES 47 7 33

SC1-V2-GENS S-47 7 38.24

SC1-V2-GENES 547 11/6/2017 38.33

SC1-V2.-GENRB 47 12/5/2027| 3842

SC1-V2-GENJS S-a7 3851

5C1-V2-GENSS 3 3887 3937

5C1-V2-GENSS S-47 39,27 AS|

SCI-V2-GENS9 S-48 1/5/2007 __367] 36.88|

SC1-V2-GEND9 548 2/6/2017 38.8S 3698
SC1-V2-GENRD S48 3/10/2017 3695 374

SC1-V2-GENSD 548 7] 37.3) 37.2

SC1-V2-GENN9 S48 1/9/2017] 3641 36.51

SC1-V2-GEND9 5-48 2f6/2017) 36.51 3857

SC1-V2-GENDD 543 gmﬂ 36.57 37.06

SC1-v2-GENND 548 4/8/2017 az. 37.12)

SC1-V2.GENIS. 548 /772017 4139, 41.48

SC1-V2-GERR9 5-48 878/2017 [ 4184

SC1-V2-GEN29 S48 M'l 41.54 42.03!

SC1-V2-GENZ9 S48 7] 42.03 4208

SC1-V2-GENRS 548 12/5{2017 42,09 4218

SCL-V2-GENIS 548 42.36

SC1-V2-GENS9 S-43 42.35 43.12

SCI-V2-GENRD 598 4342 43.27

SC1-V1-GENES 549 3/9/2017 3358 336
C1-V1-GENKS 549 336,

5C1-V1-GENNS $49 385 38.

SC1-V1-GENSS S-49 _11/28/2017, 387, 38.8) .

5C1-VI-GENSIS 43 39.7 398
C1-V1-GENRS 549 % 398

SC1-V1-GENS? 50 M 26 286!

SC1-V1-GENS7 $-50 7 286 28.8

SC1-V1-GENS7 S50 7, 285 289
C1-V1-GENT7 S-50 7 336 33,
1 S 550 12572007 37 %2

SC1-V1-GEND? S-50 349 35

SC1-V1-GENNT 5-50 18 325 35
C1-VI-GENSS S-51 307 30.9]

SC1-V1-GENS3 S-51, J@M’li ”—ﬂ 317,

SCI-V1-GENS §-51 3/5/2017 317 31.7|

SC1-VA-GENIS S-51 7] 29.9 80.1
C1-V1-GENSS S-51 31.7

SC2-V1-GENNS $-51 30.2 30.3

SC1-V1-GENSS S-51 10/29/2017 33 35.1

SC1-V3-GENiE S51 10/29/2017 368 3

SC1-V1-GENIS 551 11/28/2002] 375

SC1-V1-GENGE s-51 __112ep007] 35
C1-V1-GENNS §-51 381 38.3

e —— S e )







Table 2: Emergency Run Events at Campus

Meter Reading
Generator | Source Number Date Start Stop RunTime (hours) Description Category
SC1-V1-GEN#1 |S-17 5/29/2016 195, 202 7|Generator started due to loss of utility power. Emergency Run
SC1-V1-GEN#3 |S-19 5/29/2016 195 202 71Generator started due to loss of utility power. |Emergency Run
SC1-V3-GEN#1 |S-24 5/29/2016 105.3 124.4 19.1]|Generator started due to loss of utility power. |Emgrgsﬂ Run
SC1-V3-GEN#2 [S-25 5/29/2016 121.2] 140.2 19]Generator started due to loss of utility power. Emergency Run
SC1-V3-GEN#3 |S-26 $/29/2016 103.8 122.9] 19.1|Generator started due to loss of utility power. Emergency Run
SC1-V3-GEN#4 |S-27 5/29/2016 125.7 144.8 19.1]Generator started due to loss of utility power. |Emergency Run



